

Gazette

Council and Main Committees 482

General Purposes Committee of Council:
(a) Beit Fund
(b) Establishment of The June Ilott Fund
(c) Mathematical Prizes Fund
(d) Establishment of the Moh Family Foundation Professor of Infectious Disease Epidemiology Fund
(e) Establishment of the Dame Louise Richardson Professor in Global Security
(f) Boden Professor of Sanskrit
(g) Changes to trusts and posts regulations consequent on the merger of the Departments of Plant Sciences and Zoology

Congregation 4 July:
Degree by Resolution

Council of the University:
Register of Congregation

Congregation 494

Congregation 11 October:
(1) Voting on a Resolution authorising the allocation of space in New Radcliffe House to the Department of Experimental Psychology
(2) Voting on a Resolution authorising the allocation of space in Wytham Field Station to the Department of Zoology
(3) Voting on a Resolution authorising the allocation of a site on the Churchill Hospital site to the Medical Sciences Division (*corrigendum*)

Notices 495

Consultative Notices:
Call for nominations for Honorary Degrees and for Degrees by Diploma

General Notices:
Gazette publication arrangements

Appointments:
Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences

Examinations and Boards 496

Examinations for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy

Changes to Examination Regulations:
Education Committee
Continuing Education Board
Continuing Education Board/
Medical Sciences Board
Medical Sciences Board
Social Sciences Board

Colleges, Halls and Societies 497

Obituaries:
St Hilda's
Trinity

Advertisements 498

Notifications of Vacancies 500

University of Oxford

Colleges, Halls and Societies

External Vacancies



UNIVERSITY OF
OXFORD

Council and Main Committees

General Purposes Committee of Council

The General Purposes Committee of Council has made the following changes in regulations, to come into effect on **22 July**.

(a) Beit Fund

Explanatory Note

These changes are made to add in standard trust provisions and remove some of the administrative provisions.

Text of Regulations

In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, delete the two sections concerning the Beit Fund and the Beit Prize, and replace with the following:

‘Beit Fund

1. The University received with gratitude a gift from Mr Alfred Beit to be held as permanent endowment on the trusts declared in this regulation. Further money or property may be paid or transferred to the University as either expendable or permanent endowment to be held on the same trusts. The assets so held will be known as the Beit Fund (“the Fund”).

2. The University shall retain as permanent endowment those of the assets in the Funds which are contributed on the express understanding that they are to be treated as permanent endowment (“the Permanent Endowment”).

3. The University shall (a) apply the income of the Permanent Endowment; and (b) apply the income and, in its discretion, the capital of the remainder of the Fund for the advancement of education for the benefit of the public as follows:

- (1) by establishing and contributing to the maintenance costs of the post of Beit Professor of the History of the British Commonwealth (“the Professor”)

(2) the payment of the Beit Prize and of the Examiners for that prize (“the Prize”);

4. The administration of the Fund, and the application of its income, shall be the responsibility of a board of management consisting of;

- (1) the Vice-Chancellor;
- (2) the Beit Professor of the History of the British Commonwealth;
- (3) one person appointed by the Board of the Faculty of History;
- (4) one person appointed by the Board of the Social Sciences Divisional Board;
- (5) one person appointed by the Humanities Divisional Board.

The elected members of the board of management shall hold office for three years and shall be re-eligible.

The board of management may co-opt up to two additional members, who may be internal or external, on condition that the board shall always ensure by the use of its power of co-optation that the overall range of activities and concerns of the Beit Fund is as fully represented within the total membership of the board as is reasonably practicable.

5. No more than an annual contribution equal to two-fifths of the total income of the Fund shall be used towards the payment of the full salary of the Professor.

6. The Beit Prize shall be for an essay on some subject connected with Global and Imperial History. It shall be open to student members of the University and be administered by the Faculty of History. The value of the prize, and the annual sum for the payment of the judges, shall be as determined by the board of management.

7. If there is income remaining once the primary purposes have been met, there shall be discretion to apply the income and/or capital of the Fund to support activities such as, but not limited to:

- The establishment of Scholarships in Global and Imperial History;
- Provision of funds to support the research of the Professor;
- Provision of funds for the purchase of such books, documents and resources as in the opinion of the Curators of the Library are required in the study of Global and Imperial History;
- Grants made by the board of management for any purposes which in its opinion will promote the study of Global and Imperial History in the University.

Any balance of the income not so applied shall be carried forward for expenditure in subsequent years.

8. The University shall have power to pay out of the income of the Funds all costs of and incidental to the creation of the Funds and the management and administration of the Funds and the post.

9. The University may exercise any of its corporate powers in the management and administration of the Funds in so far as those powers are not inconsistent with these regulations.

10. Regulations 1–3 and 5–12 shall be deemed to be Trust Regulations under the provisions of Part D of Statute XVI.

11. Subject to regulation 12, Council may amend, repeal or add to these regulations in accordance with Part D of Statute XVI, but no amendment is valid if it would cause the Fund to:

- (1) cease to be exclusively charitable according to the law of England and Wales; or
- (2) be outside the objects of the University.

12. Any amendment to regulation 3 is an amendment to the main objects of the Funds for the purposes of Part D of Statute XVI and must be approved both by Congregation of the University and subsequently by Her Majesty in Council.

(b) Establishment of The June Ilott Fund*Explanatory Note*

These new regulations are made to formalise the trust created by the receipt of the gift from the late Ms June Ilott.

Text of Regulations

In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, insert the following:

‘The June Ilott Fund

1. The University receives with gratitude a legacy gift from the late Ms June Ilott to be held as permanent endowment on the trusts declared in this regulation. Further money or property may be paid or transferred to the University as either expendable or permanent endowment to be held on the same trusts. The assets so held will be known as The June Ilott Fund (“the Fund”).
2. The University shall retain as permanent endowment those of the assets in the Fund (if any) which are contributed on the express understanding that they are to be treated as permanent endowment (“the Permanent Endowment”).
3. The University shall (a) apply the income of the Permanent Endowment (if any); and (b) apply the income and, in its discretion, the capital of the remainder of the Fund to provide support to students accepted for Masters Courses within the Medical Sciences Division.
4. For so long as it is lawful to do so, support from the Fund will be restricted to students who the Graduate School identify, through a considered background check process, as being from disadvantaged socioeconomic backgrounds.
5. The administration of the Fund, and the application of its income, shall be the responsibility of the Medical Sciences Division.
6. The University may in its absolute discretion in the period ending 21 years from the date of this regulation, instead of applying the income of the Fund in any year, accumulate all or any part of such income by investing it, and holding it as part of the capital of the Fund. The University may apply the whole or any part of such accumulated income in any subsequent year as if it

were income of the Fund arising in the then current year.

7. The University shall have power to pay out of the capital or the income of the Fund all costs of and incidental to the creation of the Fund, and the management and administration of the Fund.
8. The University may exercise any of its corporate powers in the management and administration of the Fund in so far as those powers are not inconsistent with these regulations.
9. These regulations shall be deemed to be Trust Regulations under the provisions of Part D of Statute XVI.
10. Subject to regulation 11, Council may amend, repeal or add to these regulations in accordance with Part D of Statute XVI, but no amendment is valid if it would cause the Fund to:
 - (1) cease to be exclusively charitable according to the law of England and Wales; or
 - (2) be outside the objects of the University.
11. Any amendment to regulation 3 is an amendment to the main objects of the Fund for the purposes of Part D of Statute XVI and must be approved both by Congregation of the University and subsequently by Her Majesty in Council.

(c) Mathematical Prizes Fund*Explanatory Note*

These changes are made to add in standard trust provisions and reflect the original trust objective.

Text of Regulations

In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, delete the section concerning Mathematical Prizes and insert the following:

‘Mathematical Prizes Fund

1. The University receives with gratitude gifts to be held as permanent endowment on the trusts declared in this regulation. Further money or property may be paid or transferred to the University as either expendable or permanent endowment to be held on the same trusts. The assets so held will be known as the Mathematical Prizes Fund (“the Fund”).
2. The University shall retain as permanent endowment those of the assets in the Fund which

are contributed on the express understanding that they are to be treated as permanent endowment (“the Permanent Endowment”).

3. The University shall (a) apply the income of the Permanent Endowment; and (b) apply the income and, in its discretion, the capital of the remainder of the Fund, towards the provision of Mathematical Prizes for students studying Mathematics at the University.
4. There shall be a number of Mathematical Prizes offered each year:
 - (1) Senior Mathematical Prizes for postgraduate research students;
 - (2) Mathematical Prizes for postgraduate taught students; and
 - (3) Junior Mathematical Prizes for undergraduate students.

The board of management shall have discretion to set conditions for the award of these prizes, including on matters concerning the number and value of prizes and adjudication, in so far as those conditions are not inconsistent with these regulations.

5. The administration of the Fund, and the application of its income, shall be the responsibility of a Board of Management, comprising:
 - (1) The Head of the Mathematical Institute, who shall be Chair;
 - (2) The Associate Head of Department (Research) of the Mathematical Institute;
 - (3) The Director of Graduate Studies (Research) of the Mathematical Institute;
 - (4) Two members of the Mathematical Institute appointed by its Departmental Committee for a term of three years.

The presence of three members shall be necessary to constitute a board.

6. The Board of Management shall have the power to make presents of money, instruments, or books to meritorious, though unsuccessful candidates, for the prize, and to apply any surplus income in such other ways as they may think appropriate to promote the study of Mathematics at the University. This may include support for student bursaries or fees at the recommendation of the Director of Graduate Studies (Research) of the Mathematical Institute.

7. The University may in its absolute discretion in the period ending 21 years from the date of this regulation, instead of applying the income of the Fund in any year, accumulate all or any part of such income by investing it, and holding it as part of the capital of the Fund. The University may apply the whole or any part of such accumulated income in any subsequent year as if it were income of the Fund arising in the then current year.

8. The University shall have power to pay out of the capital or the income of the Fund all costs of and incidental to the creation of the Fund, and the management and administration of the Fund.

9. The University may exercise any of its corporate powers in the management and administration of the Fund in so far as those powers are not inconsistent with these regulations.

10. These regulations shall be deemed to be Trust Regulations under the provisions of Part D of Statute XVI.

11. Subject to regulation 12, Council may amend, repeal or add to these regulations in accordance with Part D of Statute XVI, but no amendment is valid if it would cause the Fund to:

(1) cease to be exclusively charitable according to the law of England and Wales; or

(2) be outside the objects of the University.

12. Any amendment to regulation 3 is an amendment to the main objects of the Fund for the purposes of Part D of Statute XVI and must be approved both by Congregation of the University and subsequently by Her Majesty in Council.'

(d) Establishment of the Moh Family Foundation Professor of Infectious Disease Epidemiology Fund

Explanatory Note

These new regulations are made to formalise the trust created by the receipt of the gift from the Moh Family Foundation.

Text of Regulations

In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, insert:

'Moh Family Foundation Professor of Infectious Disease Epidemiology Fund

1. The University receives with gratitude funds from the Moh Family Foundation to be held as expendable endowment on the trust declared in this regulation. Further money or property may be paid or transferred to the University as either expendable or permanent endowment to be held on the same trust. The assets so held will be known as the Moh Family Foundation Professor of Infectious Disease Epidemiology Fund ("the Fund").

2. The University shall retain as permanent endowment those of the assets in the Fund which are contributed on the express understanding that they are to be treated as permanent endowment ("the Permanent Endowment").

3. The University shall (a) apply the income of the Permanent Endowment (if any); and (b) apply the income and, in its discretion, the capital of the remainder of the Fund for the advancement of education for the benefit of the public by establishing and maintaining the post of the Moh Family Foundation Professor of Infectious Disease Epidemiology ("the Professor").

4. The Professor shall undertake research and teaching in infectious disease epidemiology.

5. The Fund shall be used to pay the salary and expenses of the Professor and associated overheads. If the salary, expenses and overheads of the Professor are wholly or partly covered from other sources or there are further funds available, there shall be discretion to apply the income of the Fund to support the Professor's research, provided that the subject matter of such research is in the field of medical sciences and therefore

further the charitable purposes of the University and the Foundation; to make acquisitions of items to support the work of the Professor; or to support the work of the Professor in any other manner.

6. The administration of the Fund, and the application of its income, shall be the responsibility of the Medical Sciences Division.

7. The University may in its absolute discretion in the period ending 21 years from the date of this regulation, instead of applying the income of the Fund in any year, accumulate all or any part of such income by investing it, and holding it as part of the capital of the Fund. The University may apply the whole or any part of such accumulated income in any subsequent year as if it were income of the Fund arising in the then current year.

8. The University shall have power to pay out of the capital or the income of the Fund all costs of and incidental to the creation of the Fund, and the management and administration of the Fund.

9. The Professor shall be subject to the General Provisions of the regulations concerning the duties of Professors and to those Particular Provisions of the same regulations which are applicable to this post.

10. The University may exercise any of its corporate powers in the management and administration of the Fund in so far as those powers are not inconsistent with these regulations.

11. These regulations shall be deemed to be Trust Regulations under the provisions of Part D of Statute XVI.

12. Subject to regulation 13, Council may amend, repeal or add to these regulations in accordance with Part D of Statute XVI, but no amendment is valid if it would cause the Fund to:

(1) cease to be exclusively charitable according to the law of England and Wales; or

(2) be outside the objects of the University.

13. Any amendment to regulation 3 is an amendment to the main objects of the Fund for the purposes of Part D of Statute XVI and must be approved both by Congregation of the University and subsequently by Her Majesty in Council.'

(e) Establishment of the Dame Louise Richardson Professor in Global Security*Explanatory Note*

At the end of 2022, Professor Dame Louise Richardson, DBE, FRSE, will draw to a close her term as Vice-Chancellor. Before arriving at Oxford, she had established a formidable reputation as an academic and advisor for her work on terrorism, security and international relations. She has continued to take a keen interest in world affairs. The University seeks to honour her role at Oxford in perpetuity with a new academic chair in global security, the Dame Louise Richardson Professorship in Global Security.

Text of Regulations

1 In the Schedule of Statutory Professorships annexed to Council Regulations 3 of 2004, insert:

‘Dame Louise Richardson Professor in Global Security’.

2 In Council Regulations 24 of 2002, concerning academic and other posts, insert:

‘Dame Louise Richardson Professor in Global Security

1. The Dame Louise Richardson Professor in Global Security shall undertake research, lecture and give instruction in Global Security.
2. The professor shall be elected by an electoral board consisting of:

- (1) the Vice-Chancellor, or, if the head of the college specified in (2) of this clause is Vice-Chancellor, a person appointed by Council;
- (2) the head of the college to which the professorship shall be for the time being allocated by Council under any decree in that behalf, or, if the head is unable or unwilling to act, a person appointed by the governing body of the college;
- (3) a person appointed by the governing body of the college specified in (2) of this clause;
- (3) a person appointed by the governing body of the college;
- (4), (5) two persons appointed by Council;
- (6) a person appointed by the Social Sciences Board; and

(7)-(9) three persons appointed by the Blavatnik School of Government.

3. The professor shall be subject to the General Provisions of the regulations concerning the duties of professors and to those Particular Provisions of the same regulations which are applicable to this chair.’

(f) Boden Professor of Sanskrit*Explanatory Note*

These changes, made on the recommendation of the Humanities Division and the Board of the Faculty of Oriental Studies, amend the regulations governing the Boden Professorship of Sanskrit to include research in the duties of the professor.

Text of Regulations

In Council Regulations 24 of 2002, concerning individual professorships, amend the Boden Professorship of Sanskrit as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Boden Professor of Sanskrit

1. The Boden Professor of Sanskrit shall undertake research and teaching lecture and give instruction in the Sanskrit Language and Literature.
2. The professor shall be elected by an electoral board consisting of:

- (1) the Vice-Chancellor, ~~or, if the Master of Balliol College is Vice-Chancellor, a person appointed by Council on the occurrence of a vacancy to act as an elector on that occasion;~~
- (2) the Master of Balliol College, or, if the Master is unable or unwilling to act, a person appointed by the Governing Body of Balliol College on the occurrence of a vacancy to act as an elector on that occasion;
- (3) a person appointed by the Governing Body of Balliol College;
- (4), (5) two persons a person appointed by Council;
- (6) the Head of the Humanities Division, or their nominee;
- (7)-(9) three persons appointed by the Board of the Faculty of Oriental Studies.
- ~~(5), (6) two persons elected by the Board of the Faculty of Oriental Studies;~~

~~(7) a person elected by the Board of the Faculty of Literae Humaniores;~~

3. The professor shall be subject to the General Provisions of the ~~regulations~~ decree concerning the duties of professors and to those Particular Provisions of the same ~~regulations~~ decree which are applicable to this chair.’

(g) Changes to trusts and posts regulations consequent on the merger of the Departments of Plant Sciences and Zoology*Explanatory Note*

The Departments of Plant Sciences and Zoology will merge on 1 August 2022 to become the Department of Biology. A number of changes to regulations for trusts and posts are required as a consequence of this. The opportunity is also being taken to amend outdated references and to update the responsibilities of the postholders where appropriate.

Text of Regulations

1 In Council Regulations 24 of 2002, regarding the Edward Grey Professor of Field Ornithology, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Edward Grey Professor of Field Ornithology

1. The Edward Grey Professor of Field Ornithology shall undertake research in Field Ornithology and shall lecture and give instructions in this subject.
2. The professor shall be elected by an electoral board consisting of:

- (1) the Vice-Chancellor, ~~or, if the head of the college specified in (2) of this clause is Vice-Chancellor, a person appointed by Council;~~
- (2) the head of the college to which the professorship shall be for the time being allocated by Council under any ~~decree~~ regulation in that behalf, or, if the head is unable or unwilling to act, a person appointed by the governing body of the college;
- (3) a person appointed by the governing body of the college specified in (2) of this clause;
- (4), (5) two persons appointed by Council;
- (6)-(9) four persons appointed by the ~~Life and Environmental~~

Sciences Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Board.

3. The professor shall be subject to the General Provisions of the ~~decreeregulations~~ concerning the duties of professors and to those Particular Provisions of the same ~~decreeregulations~~ which are applicable to this chair.

2 In Council Regulations 24 of 2002, regarding the Linacre Professor of Zoology, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Linacre Professor of Zoology

1. The Linacre Professor of Zoology shall undertake research, lecture and give instruction in Zoology.

2. The professor shall be elected by an electoral board consisting of:

(1) the Vice-Chancellor, ~~or, if the Warden of Merton College is Vice-Chancellor, a person appointed by Council;~~

(2) the Warden of Merton College, or, if the Warden is unable or unwilling to act, a person appointed by the Governing Body of Merton College;

(3) a person appointed by the Governing Body of Merton College;

(4), (5) two persons appointed by Council;

(6)–(9) four persons appointed by the ~~Life and Environmental Sciences~~ Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Board.

3. The professor shall be subject to the General Provisions of the ~~decreeregulations~~ concerning the duties of professors and to those Particular Provisions of the same ~~decreeregulations~~ which are applicable to this chair.

3 In Council Regulations 24 of 2002, regarding the Professor of Zoology, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Professor of Zoology

1. The Professor of Zoology shall undertake research, lecture and give instruction in Zoology.

2. The professor shall be elected by an electoral board consisting of:

(1) the Vice-Chancellor, ~~or, if the head of the college specified in (2) of this clause is Vice-Chancellor, a person appointed by Council;~~

(2) the head of the college to which the professorship shall be for the time being allocated by Council under any decree in that behalf, or, if the head is unable or unwilling to act, a person appointed by the governing body of the college;

(3) a person appointed by the governing body of the college specified in (2) of this clause;

(4)–(6) ~~at three persons~~ appointed by Council;

~~(5), (6) two persons appointed by the General Board;~~

(7)–(9) three persons appointed by the Board of the ~~Faculty of Biological Sciences~~ Department of Biology, of whom one shall be appointed after consultation with the Curators of the Hope Collections.

3. The professor shall be subject to the General Provisions of the ~~decreeregulations~~ concerning the duties of professors and to those Particular Provisions of the same ~~decreeregulations~~ which are applicable to this chair.

4 In Council Regulations 24 of 2002, regarding the Reader in Plant Science, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Reader in Plant Science

1. There shall be a Reader in Plant Science who shall be elected by a board consisting of:

(1) the Vice-Chancellor;

(2) the Sibthorpiian Professor of Plant Science;

(3), (4) ~~at two persons~~ appointed by Council;

~~(4) a person appointed by the General Board;~~

(5)–(7) three persons appointed by the Board of the ~~Faculty of Biological Sciences~~ Department of Biology.

2. The reader shall engage in advanced study or research and shall, under the direction of the Head of the Department of ~~Plant Sciences~~ Biology, lecture and give instruction in Plant Science.

5 In Council Regulations 24 of 2002, regarding the Hope Professor of Zoology (Entomology), amend as follows (deleted text struck through):

‘Hope Professor of Zoology (Entomology)

1. The Hope Professor of Zoology (Entomology) shall undertake research in and shall lecture and give instruction in Zoology (Entomology) and generally promote its study in the University.

2. The professor shall be elected by an electoral board consisting of:

(1) the Vice-Chancellor, ~~or, if the Principal of Jesus College is Vice-Chancellor, a person appointed by Council on the occurrence of a vacancy to act as an elector on that occasion;~~

(2) the Principal of Jesus College, or, if the Principal is unable or unwilling to act, a person appointed by the Governing Body of Jesus College on the occurrence of a vacancy to act as an elector on that occasion;

(3) a person appointed by the Governing Body of Jesus College;

(4), (5) two persons appointed by Council;

(6)–(9) four persons appointed by the Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Board, of whom one shall be appointed after consultation with the Director of the Oxford University Museum of Natural History.

3. The Hope Professor shall not hold any other professorship or readership in the University.

4. The Hope Professor shall be subject to the General Provisions of the regulations concerning the duties of professors and to those Particular Provisions of the same regulations which are applicable to this chair.

6 In Council Regulations 24 of 2002, regarding the Luc Hoffman Professor of Field Ornithology, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Luc Hoffman Professor of Field Ornithology

1. The benefaction of £2.51m from members of the Hoffmann family, together with any further donations for this purpose, shall be known as the Luc Hoffmann Fund (“the Fund”).

2. The University shall apply the Fund in the endowment and support of a

Professorship of Field Ornithology at the University to be known as the Luc Hoffmann Professorship of Field Ornithology (“the Professorship”).

3. The administration of the Fund, and the application of its capital and income, shall be the responsibility of the ~~Life and Environmental Sciences~~ Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Board.

4. The Luc Hoffmann Professor of Field Ornithology shall undertake research in Ornithology and shall lecture and give instruction in that subject.

5. If required by the ~~Life and Environmental Sciences~~ Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Board so to do, the Professor shall direct the Edward Grey Institute for Field Ornithology.

6. The Professor shall be elected by an electoral board comprising:

(1) the Vice-Chancellor, ~~or, if the head of the college specified in paragraph (2) below is Vice-Chancellor, a person appointed by Council;~~

(2) the head of the college to which the professorship shall be allocated by Council for the time being, or, if the head is unable or unwilling to act, a person appointed by the governing body of the college;

(3) a person appointed by the governing body of the college specified in paragraph (2) above;

(4), (5) two persons appointed by Council, of whom one shall be appointed after consultation (during his lifetime) with M André Hoffmann; and

(6)-(9) four persons appointed by the ~~Life and Environmental Sciences~~ Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Board.

7. Regulations 3-6 above may be amended by Council.

7 In Council Regulations 24 of 2002, regarding the Tasso Leventis Professor of Biodiversity, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Tasso Leventis Professor of Biodiversity

1. The benefaction from the Tasso Leventis Conservation Foundation which comprises £2,361,000, together

with any further donations for this purpose, shall be used to establish and maintain a Professorship in Biodiversity, to be known as the Tasso Leventis Professor of Biodiversity.

2. The University shall retain all of the benefaction as permanent endowment and shall apply the net income of this benefaction towards the support of this Chair as follows:

(1) in the payment of the stipend, national insurance, pension contributions and associated direct costs of the Chair payable by the University and subject thereto;

(2) for the support of teaching or research into the areas mentioned in regulation 3 below in such manner as shall be approved by a Board of Management made up of the following persons or their respective nominees: the Head of the Department of ~~Zoology~~ Biology, the Head of the Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Division, and the Warden of Merton College.

Any unexpended net income in a financial year may in any one or more subsequent years ~~May in any one or more subsequent years~~ be expended in accordance with regulation 2 (2) above.

3. The Tasso Leventis Professor of Biodiversity shall lecture and give instruction in Biodiversity. The professor shall engage in the study of and research into the variety and variation of life at all levels of biological organisation; and in the application of the results to the problems which face ecologists, policymakers and humankind in general.

4. The professor shall be elected by an electoral board consisting of:

(1) the Vice-Chancellor, ~~or, if the head of the college specified in paragraph (2) of this clause is Vice-Chancellor, a person appointed by Council;~~

(2) the Warden of Merton College (being the college to which the professorship has been allocated by Council), or if the Warden is unable or unwilling to act, a person appointed by the governing body of the college;

(3) a person appointed by Merton College;

(4), (5) two persons appointed by Council, one of them after

consultation with the Tasso Leventis Conservation Foundation;

(6)-(9) four persons appointed by the Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Board.

5. The professor shall be subject to the General Provisions of the regulations concerning the duties of professors and to those Particular Provisions of the same regulations which are applicable to this chair.

6. Regulations 1-2 shall be deemed as Trust Regulations under the provisions of Part D of Statute XVI.

7. Regulations 3-5, and the composition of the Board of Management in Regulation 2 (2), may be amended by Council.

8 In Council Regulations 24 of 2002, regarding the Wood Professor of Forest Science, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Wood Professor of Forest Science

1. There shall be a Wood Professor of Forest Science, who will be a distinguished specialist in a branch of forest science and who has some understanding of the environmental, ecological and economic aspects of forestry. The Wood Professor of Forest Science shall undertake research in and shall lecture and give instruction in forestry and promote its study in the University (“the Professorship”).

2. The University receives with gratitude the sum of £750,000 from Audrey and Martin Wood to be held on the trusts declared in this regulation. Further money or property may be paid or transferred to the University to be held on the same trusts. The assets so held will be known as the Professor of Forest Science Fund (“the Fund”).

3. The University shall retain as permanent endowment those of the assets in the Fund which are contributed on the express understanding that they are to be treated as permanent endowment (“the Permanent Endowment”).

4. The University shall (1) apply the income of the Permanent Endowment; and (2) apply the income and, in its discretion, the capital of the remainder of the Fund, towards the salary and expenses of the holder of the Professorship and associated overheads.

5. The administration of the Fund, and the application of its income and expendable capital, shall be the responsibility of the Department of ~~Plant Sciences~~Biology.

6. The professor shall be elected by an electoral board consisting of:

(1) the Vice-Chancellor, ~~or, if the head of the college specified in (2) of this clause is Vice-Chancellor, a person appointed by Council;~~

(2) the head of the college to which the professorship shall be for the time being allocated by Council under any regulation in that behalf, or if the head is unable or unwilling to act, a person appointed by the governing body of the college;

(3) a person appointed by the governing body of the college specified in (2) of this clause;

(4)-(5) two persons appointed by Council; and

(6)-(9) four persons appointed by the Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Board.

7. The University may in its absolute discretion in the period ending 21 years from the date of this regulation, instead of applying the income of the Fund in any year, accumulate all or any part of such income by investing it, and holding it as part of the capital of the Fund. The University may apply the whole or any part of such accumulated income in any subsequent year as if it were income of the Fund arising in the then current year.

8. The University shall have power to pay out of the capital or the income of the Fund all costs of and incidental to the creation of the Fund, and the management and administration of the Fund and the Professorship.

9. The University may exercise any of its corporate powers in the management and administration of the Fund in so far as those powers are not inconsistent with these regulations.

10. Regulations 2-5 and 7-12 shall be deemed to be Trust Regulations under the provisions of Part D of Statute XVI.

11. Subject to regulation 12, Council may amend, repeal or add to these regulations but no amendment is valid if it would cause the Fund to:

(1) cease to be exclusively charitable according to the law of England and Wales; or

(2) be outside the objects of the University.

12. Any amendment to regulation 4 is an amendment to the main objects of the Fund and may only be made:

(1) by Council if more than 25 years have elapsed since the date of this regulation and the application of the Fund in accordance with regulation 4 has, in the University's reasonable opinion, ceased to provide a suitable and effective method of using the Fund, regard being had to the spirit of the original gift; or

(2) pursuant to Part D of Statute XVI with the approval of both Congregation of the University and subsequently Her Majesty in Council.

13. The professor shall be subject to the General Provisions of the regulations concerning the duties of professors and to those Particular Provisions of the same regulations which are applicable to this chair.

9 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Aldrichian and Aldrichian-Tomlinsian Funds, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

'Aldrichian and Aldrichian-Tomlinsian Funds

1. The income arising from the Bequest of George Aldrich, Doctor of Medicine, shall be applied as follows:

(a) one-third to be paid to the Regius Professor of Medicine who shall ex officio become the Aldrichian Professor of Medicine;

(b) one-third to be paid to the Aldrichian Praelector and Reader in Chemistry; and

(c) one-third to be paid to the Aldrich Tomlins Fund and applied as directed by cl. 2 below.

2. The emoluments arising from the benefactions of Richard Tomlins, Esquire, and George Aldrich, Doctor of Medicine, shall be applied to the payment of a Departmental Lecturer or Lecturers in Zoology appointed by the Head of the Department of ~~Zoology~~Biology.

10 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Alexander Library in the Edward Grey Institute of Field Ornithology, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

'Alexander Library in the Edward Grey Institute of Field Ornithology

1. The Director of the Edward Grey Institute of Field Ornithology shall be responsible, under the Head of the Department of ~~Zoology~~Biology, for the maintenance and improvement of the Alexander Library and for the application of such funds, including the interest of the Edward Grey Memorial Fund, as may be allocated for the purposes of the library.

2. The library shall continue to be available for reference (but not borrowing) by members of the British Trust for Ornithology, the British Ornithologists' Union, and the Oxford Ornithological Society, in addition to members of the University.

3. The bequests of W. B. Alexander of certain articles of furniture and paintings for the Edward Grey Institute of Field Ornithology and of the residue of his estate for the purposes of the Alexander Library, in the institute, shall be administered by the Department of ~~Zoology~~Biology under delegated authority from the Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Board, on the recommendation of the Advisory Council of the Edward Grey Institute of Field Ornithology.

4. Regulation 3 above may be amended by Council.

11 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Blackman Lecturership Fund, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

'Blackman Lecturership Fund

1. The Board of the ~~Faculty of Biological Sciences~~Department of Biology shall be the Board of Management of the G.E. Blackman Lecturership Fund.

2. The departmental committee of the Department of ~~Plant Sciences~~Biology, acting on behalf of the ~~faculty~~ board, shall appoint a committee to carry out the provisions of ~~clause regulation~~ clause regulation 3 below, subject to such conditions as the board may lay down. The committee shall consist of the Sibthorpiian Professor of Plant Science ex officio

and up to six persons representative of agricultural crop, animal, and soil science. The elected members shall hold office for three years and shall be re-eligible.

3. The income from the fund shall be used to provide an annual lecture to be called the G.E. Blackman Lecture, to be given on some aspect of the application of science to Agriculture.

4. Income not expended in any year shall be carried forward for expenditure in subsequent years.

5. Council shall have power to alter ~~these~~ ~~decrees~~ regulations from time to time, provided that the main object of the fund (namely, to promote the study of Agricultural Science within the University) is kept in view.

12 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Borthwick-Norton Fund, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Borthwick-Norton Fund

1. The proceeds from the sale of ornithological works generously bequeathed to the Alexander Library of the Edward Grey Institute of Field Ornithology by the late Mrs E.S. Borthwick-Norton shall be used to establish a fund which shall be known as the BorthwickNorton Fund.

2. The first call on the net annual income of the fund shall be the support of the Alexander Library.

3. Any income not required for the purpose defined in clause 2 above shall be used to support the work of the Edward Grey Institute of Field Ornithology in such other ways as may be approved by the board of management of the fund. Any income not expended in any year shall be carried forward for expenditure in subsequent years.

4. The Fund includes transfers from the Alexander Library in the Edward Grey Institute of Field Ornithology and the Grey Institute of Field Ornithology.

5. The board of management of the fund shall consist of: (1) the Director of the Edward Grey Institute of Field Ornithology, who shall be chairman; (2) the Librarian of the Alexander Library; (3) the Head of the Department of ~~Zoology~~ Biology; (4) a nominee of the British Ornithologists’ Union.

6. Council shall have power to alter ~~these~~ ~~regulations~~ from time to time, provided that the main object of the fund, as defined in ~~clauses~~ regulations 1 and 2 above, is always kept in view.

13 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Cancer Research Committee, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Cancer Research Committee

The Curators of the University Chest shall accept annual block grants for cancer research from the Cancer Research Campaign, to be paid out on the direction of the Oxford Cancer Research Committee composed of the following:

- (1) Regius Professor of Medicine
- (2) The Head of the Department of ~~Zoology~~ Biology (or ~~his or her~~ their nominee)
- (3) Dr Lee’s Professor of Anatomy
- (4) Waynflete Professor of Physiology
- (5) Waynflete Professor of Chemistry
- (6) Professor of Pathology
- (7) Whitley Professor of Biochemistry
- (8) Nuffield Professor of Surgery
- (9) Nuffield Professor of Clinical Medicine
- (10) Nuffield Professor of Obstetrics and Gynaecology
- (11) Professor of Morbid Anatomy’.

14 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Department of Plant Sciences General Purposes Fund, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Department of Plant Sciences General Purposes Fund

1. Ten pounds and such further money or property as may be paid or transferred to be held by the University on the same trusts shall be held together as part of the ~~Department of~~ Department of Plant Sciences General Purposes Fund (“the Fund”), which shall be held on the trusts declared in this regulation.

2. The Fund includes transfers from the Curator of the Fielding Herbarium Fund, Forestry Professor Fund, J Burt Davy Research Scholarship Fund, Samuel Wilson Fund, Sherardian Campaign Fund, Sibthorpiian Professor

of Plant Science Fund, Study of Agriculture Fund, Brooks Memorial Fund, Gertrude Witt Fund, Harley Prize of the New Phytologist Trust, Jimmy Elliott Memorial Fund, Mrs H B Fielding Benefaction Fund, Nancy Lindsay Memorial Fund, School of Forestry Jubilee Prize Fund, Styles Memorial Prize Fund, Villar Bequest Fund and Wilson Scholarships in Forestry Fund.

3. The University shall retain as permanent endowment those of the assets in the Fund which are contributed on the express understanding that they are to be treated as permanent endowment (“the Permanent Endowment”).

4. The University shall (a) apply the income of the Permanent Endowment; and (b) apply the income and, in its discretion, the capital of the remainder of the Fund, towards the advancement of education, learning, teaching, scholarship and research at, or in connection with, ~~the Department of~~ the Department of Plant Sciences

5. The administration of the Fund, and the application of its income, shall be the responsibility of a Board of Management comprising:

- (1) the Head of Department of ~~Plant Sciences~~ Biology (who shall be chairman);
- (2) the Sibthorpiian Professor of Plant Sciences (or his or her nominee); and
- (3) the Sherardian Professor of Botany (or his or her nominee).

The Board may make and amend Standing Orders consistent with these Regulations governing the administration of the Fund and the application of its income.

6. The University shall have power to pay out of the capital or the income of the Fund all costs of and incidental to the creation of the Fund and the management and administration of the Fund.

7. The University may exercise any of its corporate powers in the management and administration of the Fund insofar as those powers are not inconsistent with these regulations.

8. Subject to regulation 9, Council may amend, repeal or add to these regulations in accordance with Part D of Statute XVI, but no amendment is valid if it would cause the Fund to:

(1) cease to be exclusively charitable according to the law of England and Wales; or

(2) be outside the objects of the University.

9. Any amendment to regulation 4 is an amendment to the main objects of the Fund for the purposes of Part D of Statute XVI and must be approved both by Congregation of the University and subsequently by Her Majesty in Council.

15 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Druce Bequest, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Druce Bequest

[3]

1. The Board of the ~~Faculty of Biological Sciences~~Department of Biology shall be the board of management of the Druce Bequest.

2. The board shall appoint a committee consisting of:

(1) the Sherardian Professor of Botany;

(2) the Claridge Druce Curator;

(3)-(5) three other members elected by it (who need not necessarily be members of the board); to be responsible, on behalf of the University, for expending the income arising from the Druce Bequest in accordance with clause 9 of the scheme for the administration of the bequest.

3. The elected members shall hold office for three years and shall be re-eligible.

4. The committee shall report on its activities to the board at least once in each year.

16 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Dunston Memorial Fund, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Dunston Memorial Fund

1. The University accepts with gratitude the late Miss E.F.I. Dunston’s bequests in memory of her grandfather, her father, and her three brothers, for the furtherance within the University of the study of Mycology.

2. The fund established by the bequests shall be administered by the Board of the ~~Faculty of Biological Sciences~~Department of Biology.

3. Council shall have power to alter ~~these decrees~~regulations from time to time, provided that the main purpose of the fund as defined in ~~clause~~regulation 1 above is maintained.

17 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Field Studies Book Prize, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Field Studies Book Prize

1. The University accepts with gratitude the sum of £500 donated by Dr H.N. Southern, former Senior Research Officer in Zoology, the income from which shall be used to provide a book prize for the field study of animals.

2. The prize shall be awarded annually to the candidate who has shown the greatest aptitude for zoological field studies in the Honour School of ~~Natural Science (Biological Sciences)~~Biology and/or in independent project work, provided that ~~his or her~~their work is deemed to be of sufficient merit.

3. The prize shall be awarded jointly by three persons (hereinafter called ‘the awardees’) who shall comprise:

(1) the Head of the Department of ~~Zoology~~Biology or ~~his or her~~their nominee;

(2) the Director of the Edward Grey Institute of Field Ornithology or ~~his or her~~their nominee;

(3) a person appointed by the Board of the ~~Faculty of Biological Sciences~~Department of Biology.

4. If in any year the prize is not awarded, the income of the fund shall be carried forward for use in whole or in part to augment the value of the prize on subsequent occasions at the discretion of the awardees.

5. The prize shall be placed under the general supervision of the Board of the ~~Faculty of Biological Sciences~~Department of Biology.

6. Council shall have power to alter ~~these decrees~~regulations from time to time, provided that the main object of the fund, namely, the establishment of a book prize for the field study of animals, is kept in view.

18 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Hosier Fund, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Hosier Fund

1. The University accepts with gratitude from Mrs Doreen Ethel King, OBE, as Trustee of the A.J. Hosier Educational Trust, the sum of £30,000 which shall form a fund for the promotion within the University of agricultural education in the United Kingdom.

2. The first charge on the income from the fund shall be the provision of postgraduate studentships, to be known as the A.J. Hosier Studentships, which shall be tenable at Linacre College.

3. The fund shall be administered by a board of management consisting of:

(1) the Sibthorpe Professor of Plant Science;

(2) the Head of the Department of ~~Plant Sciences~~Biology;

(3) a person appointed by the Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Divisional Board;

(4) the Principal of Linacre College, or a deputy appointed by the Principal.

4. The studentship shall be open to graduates who are citizens of the United Kingdom.

5. Holders of the studentships shall be required to pursue a course of advanced study and research at Oxford in any of the following aspects of agriculture:

(i) husbandry, whether animal, dairy, poultry, grassland, or crop;

(ii) agricultural economics, agricultural statistics (either experimental or economic), or agricultural marketing;

(iii) agricultural science (in its more applied aspects).

6. The studentships shall be tenable for one year in the first instance, and may be held for up to a further two years at the discretion of the board of management.

7. Any income not required in any year for the studentships shall either be applied at the discretion of the board of management in some other way consistent with the object of the fund or carried forward for expenditure in subsequent years.

8. Council shall have power to alter this regulation at any time, provided that no alteration shall be made to regulation 2

above without the prior consent of the said Doreen Ethel King, her personal representatives and assigns, and provided further that any amended provisions shall be of an exclusively educational charitable nature and provide for the promotion within the University of agricultural education in the United Kingdom.’

19 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Jenkinson Fund, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Jenkinson Fund

1. The University shall retain all of the Elizabeth Hannah Jenkinson Fund (“the Fund”) as permanent endowment, and shall apply the net income of the Fund to the encouragement of research work in Embryology.

2. Grants from the Fund shall be used to support research on normal and experimental Embryology of Animals undertaken by researchers in the Department of ~~Zoology~~Biology of the University.

3. The administration of the Fund, and the application of its income, shall be the responsibility of a management committee comprising:

- (1) the Linacre Professor of Zoology;
- (2), (3) two other members of the Academic Staff of the Department of ~~Zoology~~Biology working in the field of developmental biology, decided by the Linacre Professor and the Head of the Department of ~~Zoology~~Biology;
- (4) a fourth member who may be co-opted if one of the above members has an application under consideration.

4. Regulations 2 and 3 above may be amended by Council.’

20 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the John Oldacre Scholarships Fund, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘John Oldacre Scholarships Fund

1. The University receives with gratitude the sum of £1,000,000 from the trustees of the John Oldacre Foundation to be held as permanent endowment on the trusts declared in this regulation. Further money or property may be paid or transferred to the University as either expendable

or permanent endowment to be held on the same trusts. The assets so held will be known as the John Oldacre Scholarships Fund (“the Fund”).

2. The University shall retain as permanent endowment those of the assets in the Fund which are contributed on the express understanding that they are to be treated as permanent endowment (“the Permanent Endowment”).

3. The University shall (a) apply the income of the Permanent Endowment; and (b) apply the income and, in its discretion, the capital of the remainder of the Fund, towards the provision of scholarships to be known as the John Oldacre Scholarships (“the Scholarships”). The Scholarships shall be available to graduate students demonstrating exceptional academic merit and/or potential commencing a DPhil course of study in Plant Sciences at the University.

4. The administration of the Fund, and the application of its income, shall be the responsibility of a Board of Management (“the Board”) comprising: (1) the Sherardian Professor of Botany, who shall chair the Board; (2) the Head of the Department of ~~Plant Sciences~~Biology; and (3) the Director of Graduate Studies at the Department of ~~Plant Sciences~~Biology.

5. The University may in its absolute discretion in the period ending 21 years from 16 August 2018, instead of applying the income of the Fund in any year, accumulate all or any part of such income by investing it, and holding it as part of the capital of the Fund. The University may apply the whole or any part of such accumulated income in any subsequent year as if it were income of the Fund arising in the then current year.

6. The University shall have power to pay out of the income of the Fund all costs of and incidental to the creation of the Fund and the management and administration of the Fund and the Scholarship.

7. The University may exercise any of its corporate powers in the management and administration of the Fund in so far as those powers are not inconsistent with these regulations.

8. Regulations 1-10 shall be deemed to be Trust Regulations under the provisions of Part D of Statute XVI.

9. Subject to regulation 10, Council may amend, repeal or add to these regulations in accordance with Part D of Statute XVI, but no amendment is valid if it would cause the Fund to: (1) cease to be exclusively charitable according to the law of England and Wales; or (2) be outside the objects of the University.

10. Any amendment to regulation 3 is an amendment to the main objects of the Fund for the purposes of Part D of Statute XVI and must be approved both by Congregation of the University and subsequently by Her Majesty in Council.’

21 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Kirby Memorial Fund, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Kirby Memorial Fund

1. The fund (founded by friends of the late David R.S. Kirby, University Lecturer in Zoology and Fellow of St Catherine’s College) shall be called the David Kirby Memorial Fund, and shall be managed by a board of management consisting of

- (1) the Head of the Department of ~~Zoology~~Biology (or their nominee);
- (2) the Master of St Catherine’s College (or their nominee);
- (3) a person appointed by the Department of ~~Zoology~~Biology for such period or periods as it shall determine.

2. The income of the fund shall be applied to the establishment of a David Kirby Memorial Bursary and to the payment of expenses in connection with the award thereof.

3. The bursary shall be awarded annually ~~in Trinity term~~ to the candidate who, in the opinion of the board of management, submits the most meritorious proposal for a research project to be carried out during the vacation in collaboration with a member of the staff of a university department, research unit, or research group. Preference will be given to projects in the field of reproduction. The bursary shall be open to undergraduate members of the University studying for the Master in Biology (MBiol), the Preliminary Examination in Human Sciences, or the Honour School of Human Sciences.

~~4. The board of management shall determine the value of the bursary and the form in which applications for the~~

~~bursary shall be made and shall arrange for an announcement to be made in the University Gazette and in the Department of Zoology, not later than the sixth week of Hilary term.~~

45. The board of management may in any year withhold the bursary if there is no candidate of sufficient merit. Income not expended in any year shall be carried forward for expenditure in subsequent years and may be used by the board to award additional bursaries.

56. Council shall have power to alter this regulation from time to time, provided that no change shall be made without the approval of the Department of ~~Zoology Biology~~ and the Master of St Catherine's College.

22 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Robert and Valerie Appleby Research Scholarship Fund, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

'Robert and Valerie Appleby Research Scholarship Fund

1. The University receives with gratitude the legacy of Valerie Joan Appleby to be held as expendable endowment on the trusts declared in this regulation. Further money or property may be paid or transferred to the University as either expendable or permanent endowment to be held on the same trusts. The assets so held will be known as the Robert and Valerie Appleby Research Scholarship Fund (the "Fund").

2. The University shall retain as permanent endowment those of the assets in the Fund (if any) which are contributed on the express understanding that they are to be treated as permanent endowment (the "Permanent Endowment").

3. The University shall (a) apply the income of the Permanent Endowment (if any); and (b) apply the income and, in its discretion, the capital of the remainder of the Fund, towards scholarship awards to be known as the Robert and Valerie Appleby Research Scholarships (the "Scholarships"). The Scholarships shall support the study of vertebrate palaeontology by students in the Department of Zoology or, in the event that no suitable candidate can be found within the Department of Zoology, by students in other departments or museums of the University as are most appropriate.

4. The administration of the Fund, and the application of its income, shall be the responsibility of a Board of Management comprising the Head of the Department of ~~Zoology Biology~~, the Head of the Department of Earth Sciences, and the Director of the Oxford University Museum of Natural History.

5. The University may in its absolute discretion in the period ending 21 years from the date of this regulation, instead of applying the income of the Fund in any year, accumulate all or any part of such income by investing it, and holding it as part of the capital of the Fund. The University may apply the whole or any part of such accumulated income in any subsequent year as if it were income of the Fund arising in the then current year.

6. The University shall have power to pay out of the capital or the income of the Fund all costs of and incidental to the creation of the Fund, and the management and administration of the Fund and the Scholarships.

7. The University may exercise any of its corporate powers in the management and administration of the Fund in so far as those powers are not inconsistent with these regulations.

8. Regulations 1-10 shall be deemed to be Trust Regulations under the provisions of Part D of Statute XVI.

9. Subject to regulation 10, Council may amend, repeal or add to these regulations in accordance with Part D of Statute XVI, but no amendment is valid if it would cause the Fund to:

- (1) cease to be exclusively charitable according to the law of England and Wales; or
- (2) be outside the objects of the University.

10. Any amendment to regulation 3 is an amendment to the main objects of the Fund for the purposes of Part D of Statute XVI and must be approved both by Congregation of the University and subsequently by Her Majesty in Council.

23 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Tang Family Scholarship Fund for International Wildlife Conservation Practice, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

'Tang Family Scholarship Fund for International Wildlife Conservation Practice

1. The benefaction from Mr Lawrence Tang of £200,000, together with any further donations for this purpose, shall be known as the Tang Family Scholarship Fund ("the Fund").

2. The University shall apply the net income of the Fund, and (if the University so decides) the capital, in support of grants to graduate students from the Peoples' Republic of China or Hong Kong attending the postgraduate diploma course in International Wildlife Conservation Practice at the Wildlife Conservation Research Unit in the University's Department of ~~Zoology Biology~~.

3. The administration of the Fund, and the application of its capital and income, shall be the responsibility of a Board of Management comprising:

- (1) The Head of the Department of ~~Zoology Biology~~;
- (2) The Director of Graduates in the Department of ~~Zoology Biology~~;
- (3) The Director of the Wildlife Conservation Research Unit.

4. Regulations 2 and 3 above may be amended by Council.

24 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Varley-Gradwell Travelling Fellowship in Insect Ecology, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

'Varley-Gradwell Travelling Fellowship in Insect Ecology

1. The University accepts with gratitude a benefaction from two anonymous donors which shall be used, together with any other donations accepted for this purpose, to form a fund, the net income of which shall be used for the provision of a travelling fellowship for the support of field work, travel, and other activity of direct benefit to the field of insect ecology. The travelling fellowship shall be known as the Varley-Gradwell Travelling Fellowship in Insect Ecology.

2. The fund shall be administered by a board of management consisting of:

- (1) the Linacre Professor of Zoology or a person nominated by the professor;
- (2) Hope Professor of Zoology (Entomology) or a person nominated by the professor;

(3) the Tasso Leventis Professor of Biodiversity or a person nominated by the professor;

(4), (5) two persons nominated by the Board of the Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Division, who need not be members of Congregation.

Nominated members shall serve for such periods as shall be determined by the person or body nominating them as members of the board.

3. The fellowship shall be tenable for the period of one year. It shall not be renewable.

4. Applications shall be made to the board, which shall determine from time to time the persons eligible for award of the travelling fellowship, and its value.

5. Income not expended in any year shall be carried forward for expenditure in subsequent years.

6. Council shall have power to alter ~~these decrees~~ regulations from time to time, provided that the main object of the fund, as defined in ~~clause~~ regulation 1 above, is always kept in view.

25 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Weldon Memorial Prize, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Weldon Memorial Prize

1. The prize, founded to perpetuate the name of Walter Frank Raphael Weldon, MA, D.Sc., formerly Linacre Professor of Comparative Anatomy and Fellow of Merton College, and to encourage Biometric Science, shall be called the “Weldon Memorial Prize”.

2. The prize shall be awarded annually and shall consist of a bronze medal and a grant of money.

3. The electors to the prize shall be

(1) the Vice-Chancellor;

(2) the holder of an Established Chair in the Department of ~~Zoology~~ Biology on a rotational basis;

(3)-(4) two persons appointed by the Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Divisional Board;

(5)-(6) two persons appointed by the Medical Sciences Divisional Board.

Appointees shall hold office for six years and shall be re-eligible.

4. The electors shall have power to appoint, if they think fit, a judge or judges to assist them in awarding the prize.

5. The prize shall in no case be awarded to the same person a second time.

6. The prize shall, subject to the provisions of regulation 5 above, be awarded without regard to nationality or membership of any University to the person who, in the judgement of the electors, has, in the ten years next preceding the date of the award, published the most noteworthy contribution to the development of mathematical or statistical methods applied to problems in Biology. Biology shall, for the purposes of this clause, be interpreted as including Zoology, Botany, Anthropology, Sociology, Psychology, and Medical Science.

7. The electors shall have the power to divide the prize between two individuals.

8. The grant of money awarded to the winner of the prize shall consist of the remainder of the income of the fund in the year concerned after the payment of the cost of the bronze medal.

9. If no candidate is considered to be of sufficient merit to receive the prize in any year, the income of the fund in that year shall, at the discretion of the electors, be used in any one or more of the following ways:

(a) carrying forward for expenditure in subsequent years;

(b) assigning a grant of money (without the medal) to some person who shall undertake to carry out some investigation approved by the electors;

(c) otherwise promoting the investigation of mathematical or statistical methods applied to problems in Biology.

10. The electors shall have power to make rules for the purpose of carrying these regulations into effect; and Council shall have power to alter the regulations from time to time in such manner as it shall deem expedient, provided that the main objects of the foundation as expressed in regulations 1 and 6 above are always kept in view.

26 In Council Regulations 25 of 2002, regarding the Wildlife Conservation Research Fund, amend as follows (new text underlined, deleted text struck through):

‘Wildlife Conservation Research Fund

1. The benefaction from the Trustees of the Tubney Charitable Trust and from Second Titan Limited as the Trustee of the Miles Blackwell No. 2 Trust which comprises the Tubney House Estate, Oxfordshire (“the Estate”) and a sum of money for the repair and conversion of Tubney House (“the Refurbishment Payment”), together with the proceeds of sale should the Estate be sold (“the Estate Proceeds”), and any further assets transferred to the University on the trusts of these regulations, shall be known as the Wildlife Conservation and Research Fund (“the Fund”).

2. (1) The University shall apply the Fund towards seeking solutions to conservation problems by undertaking original research on aspects of fundamental biology relevant to wildlife conservation and environmental management (“the Objects”).

(2) The University shall hold the Estate or, if it is sold, the Estate Proceeds, as permanent endowment, the capital of which is to be retained and the income applied to the Objects.

(3) The balance of the Fund shall not be regarded as permanent endowment.

(4) In the case of the Refurbishment Payment, both capital and income shall be applied to the repair and conversion of Tubney House.

(5) The University shall have a discretion over whether or not to have recourse to other capital moneys in the Fund, provided that these are applied to the Objects.

3. The administration of the Fund, and the application of its capital and income, shall be the responsibility of the ~~Life and Environmental Sciences~~ Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences Board.

4. Regulation 2 above may be amended by Congregation under the provisions of Statute IV, subject to the approval of Her Majesty in Council, in accordance with the Universities of Oxford and Cambridge Act, 1923; regulations 1 and 3 may be amended by Council, so long as the Objects are always kept in view.

27 These changes shall be effective from 1 August 2022.

Congregation

Congregation

4 July

Degree by Resolution

This content has been removed as it contains personal information protected under data protection legislation.

[Members of the University with a SSO account can log in to read the redacted content.](#)

Council of the University

Register of Congregation

The Vice-Chancellor reports that the following names have been added to the Register of Congregation:

Burrows, N J, IT Services
 Emanuel-Williams, K E J, IT Services
 Hammond-Kenny, A, Nuffield Department of Surgical Sciences
 Logan, M, Nuffield Department of Primary Care Health Sciences

Divisional and Faculty Boards

For changes to regulations for examinations see '[Changes to Examination Regulations](#)' below.

Congregation

11 October

(1) Voting on a Resolution authorising the allocation of space in New Radcliffe House to the Department of Experimental Psychology

For full text of resolution see [Gazette No 5355, 30 June 2022, p459](#).

(2) Voting on a Resolution authorising the allocation of space in Wytham Field Station to the Department of Zoology

For full text of resolution see [Gazette No 5355, 30 June 2022, p460](#).

(3) Voting on a Resolution authorising the allocation of a site on the Churchill Hospital site to the Medical Sciences Division

Corrigendum

In the notice published in [Gazette No 5355, 30 June 2022, p460](#), the site in question was described as being on the Old Road Campus rather than on the Churchill Hospital site. The corrected wording of the notice appears below:

Explanatory Note

The proposed allocation of a site on the Churchill Hospital site to be used to construct the expansion to the Clinical BioManufacturing Facility.

The University has purchased approximately ten acres of land at the Churchill Hospital site for the purpose of providing long-term development potential for the expansion of the Medical Sciences Division (MSD). Parts of the land have been utilised by MSD for COVID- related vaccine trials and other related purposes, centred around the Clinical BioManufacturing Facility (CBF) and the Clinical Centre for Vaccinology and Tropical Medicine (CCVTM). Part of this activity has been housed within temporary units, and MSD's aspiration is to consolidate this activity into more permanent accommodation within that area of the Churchill site.

Text of Resolution

The allocation of approximately 1,612 sqm on the Churchill Hospital site to Medical Sciences Division to be used to construct the expansion to the Clinical BioManufacturing Facility (building number 634).

Meeting information

Members of Congregation are reminded that any two members may, not later than **noon on 3 October**, give notice in writing to the Registrar that they wish to oppose or amend the resolutions at (1), (2) or (3) above (see the note on the conduct of business in Congregation below). If no such notice has been given, and unless Council has declared otherwise or the meeting has been adjourned the legislative proposals and the resolution shall be declared carried, and the meeting may be cancelled.

Note on procedures in Congregation

¶ Business in Congregation is conducted in accordance with Congregation Regulations 2 of 2002 (<https://governance.admin.ox.ac.uk/legislation/congregation-regulations-2-of-2002>). A printout of these regulations, or of any statute or other regulations, is available from the Council Secretariat on request. A member of Congregation seeking advice on questions relating to its procedures, other than elections, should contact the Council Secretariat at the University Offices, Wellington Square (email congregation.meeting@admin.ox.ac.uk); questions relating to elections should be directed to the Elections Office (email: elections.office@admin.ox.ac.uk).

Notices

Consultative Notices

Call for nominations for Honorary Degrees and for Degrees by Diploma

Honorary degrees are conferred annually at Encaenia. Degrees by diploma are conferred on heads of state and royalty. Members of Congregation are encouraged to nominate individuals on whom such degrees might be conferred. Nominations are welcome all year round.

The Honorary Degrees Committee is charged with considering nominations received, consulting Council and making recommendations to Congregation. The committee appreciates the time taken by members of Congregation to bring names to its attention. It will be re-considering names brought to it in the last three years and hopes to receive a wide and diverse selection of new names to add to those.

When considering possible honorands, the committee will focus on individuals in the following categories:

- 1 those of high academic distinction in the fields of research and scholarship of specific interest to the University of Oxford
- 2 those distinguished in the visual, literary, musical and performing arts
- 3 those distinguished in business and industry
- 4 those who have played a distinguished role in public life, for example in contributing to progress and change in society
- 5 those who have made a significant contribution to the activities of the University of Oxford - such individuals would normally also fall into one of the categories above.

Within the categories above the committee will aim to produce a balanced and diverse list, which takes account of the global dimension that characterises this University's activities.

It has adopted a target that at least half of the final list of names proposed to Congregation for the conferment of honorary degrees will be women and/or minorities. Members of Congregation are therefore encouraged to nominate individuals of conspicuous distinction with particular reference to diversity.

Honorary degrees will not be conferred on anyone who holds, or who has retired from, a resident teaching, research or administrative post within the University or in any college or other society, except in exceptional circumstances such as distinguished service outside the terms of his or her paid service. In these circumstances, a proposal for an honorary MA may be put forward.

Nominations for honorary degrees and for degrees by diploma should be submitted on the approved application form, which requires the name of the nominee and a short supporting paragraph. Further information, including the nomination form, is available at <https://governance.admin.ox.ac.uk/committee-on-honorary-degrees> or from the Secretary to the Honorary Degrees Committee (sarah.cowburn@admin.ox.ac.uk). The completed form should be returned to the Secretary by e-mail under 'Strictly Confidential' cover.

While informal soundings within the University will often be desirable, every effort should be made to ensure that publicity is not at any stage given to any specific proposal for the conferral of an honorary degree. All nominations will be considered in strict confidence by the committee.

The names of people on whom degrees by diploma and honorary degrees have recently been conferred are published in the University Calendar and can also be found on the Committee for Honorary Degrees webpage at <https://governance.admin.ox.ac.uk/committee-on-honorary-degrees>.

General Notices

Gazette publication arrangements

The remaining *Gazette* of Trinity term will be published on 21 July.

The first *Gazette* of Michaelmas term will be published on 22 September. Please note that this issue will be restricted to Council and Congregation business and changes to Examination Regulations only. The first full *Gazette* of next term will be published on 29 September; the Michaelmas term lecture supplement will be published with the issue of 6 October.

Appointments

Mathematical, Physical and Life Sciences

CHRISTOPHER STRACHEY PROFESSORSHIP OF COMPUTING

Nobuko Yoshida, BEng MSc PhD Keio, Professor in the Department of Computing, Imperial, has been appointed to the Christopher Strachey Professorship of Computing in the Department of Computer Science with effect from 1 October 2022. Professor Yoshida will be a fellow of Wolfson.

APPOINTMENTS

Adam Kirrander, DPhil Oxf;
Associate Professor of Physical and Theoretical Chemistry and fellow of St Peter's from 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2027

Examinations and Boards

Examinations for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy

This content has been removed as it contains personal information protected under data protection legislation.

[Members of the University with a SSO account can log in to read the redacted content.](#)

Changes to Examination Regulations

For the complete text of each regulation listed below and a listing of all changes to regulations for this year to date, please see <https://gazette.web.ox.ac.uk/examination-regulations-0>.

Education Committee

GENERAL REGULATIONS FOR THE DEGREE OF MASTER OF SCIENCE BY COURSEWORK
 addition of new Social Sciences MSc programmes to table

Continuing Education Board

MSC IN SUSTAINABLE URBAN DEVELOPMENT
 correction of regulation published in [Gazette No 5345, 21 April 2022](#)

PGDIP IN SUSTAINABLE URBAN DEVELOPMENT

- (a) minor changes to reorder the list of units taught
- (b) small correction to the name of one unit

UGCERT IN THEOLOGY AND RELIGIOUS STUDIES

removal of course

Colleges, Halls and Societies

Continuing Education Board/ Medical Sciences Board

PGCERT IN INTERNATIONAL PRIMARY CARE RESEARCH LEADERSHIP
removal of course

Medical Sciences Board

PRELIMS IN BIOMEDICAL SCIENCES
minor changes to assessment arrangements

Social Sciences Board

RESEARCH DEGREES IN THE OXFORD INTERNET INSTITUTE
(a) amendments to requirements for transfer of status, confirmation of status and integrated theses
(b) changes to reflect administrative arrangements

MSC IN AFRICAN STUDIES

MSC IN COGNITIVE AND EVOLUTIONARY ANTHROPOLOGY

MSC IN LATIN AMERICAN STUDIES

MPHIL IN LATIN AMERICAN STUDIES

MPHIL IN SOCIOLOGY AND DEMOGRAPHY

PGDIP IN FINANCIAL STRATEGY (PART-TIME)

PGDIP IN GLOBAL BUSINESS (PART-TIME)

PGDIP IN ORGANISATIONAL LEADERSHIP (PART-TIME)
changes to reflect current assessment practice

MSC IN APPLIED LINGUISTICS AND SECOND LANGUAGE ACQUISITION

(a) movement of coursework submission deadlines in line with guidance provided in the EAF
(b) general administrative changes

MSC IN ARCHAEOLOGY

(a) changes to reflect current assessment practice and deadlines
(b) administrative amendments

MSC IN EDUCATIONAL ASSESSMENT

(a) clarification of administrative arrangements
(b) addition of schedule

MSC IN FINANCIAL ECONOMICS

changes to procedures for option choices

MSC IN LEARNING AND TEACHING

amendment of coursework submission dates in line with EAF guidance (including correction of regulation published in [Gazette No 5345, 21 April 2022](#))

MSC IN MEDICAL EDUCATION

MSC IN TEACHER EDUCATION

(a) amendments to reflect current assessment practice
(b) changes to assessment deadlines to bring practice into line with EAF guidance

MSC IN PUBLIC POLICY RESEARCH

new programme

MSC IN SOCIAL DATA SCIENCE

major change to programme assessment

MPHIL IN BIODIVERSITY, CONSERVATION AND MANAGEMENT
MPHIL IN ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGE AND MANAGEMENT

MPHIL IN NATURE, SOCIETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE

MPHIL IN WATER SCIENCE, POLICY AND MANAGEMENT

change to assessment deadline for elective courses

PGDIP IN ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE FOR BUSINESS (PART-TIME)

(a) clarification of regulations concerning transfer arrangements
(b) update to assessment methods to reflect current practice
(c) minor administrative amendments

PGDIP IN STRATEGY AND INNOVATION

(a) changes to reflect current assessment practice
(b) administrative amendments

Obituaries

St Hilda's

Sheila Ruth Clark (*née* Green), 31 May 2022; 1944. Aged 95.

Margaret Newton, 24 May 2022; 1953. Aged 87.

Katherine Saunders (*née* Timberlake), 28 April 2022; 1953. Aged 87.

Judith Dorothy Pinsent (*née* Plumbly), 16 April 2021; 1951. Aged 88.

Elizabeth Hilda Wicks (*née* Brotherhood), 13 March 2022; 1952. Aged 89.

Trinity

David Norman Callender, 18 March 2022; 1949. Aged 91.

Professor Gordon Murray Shepherd, 9 June 2022; 1959. Aged 88.

(George) William 'Bill' Strahan, 22 August 2020; 1955. Aged 84.

Peter William Taylor, 1 May 2022; 1960. Aged 80.

John Ambrose Wrangham Whitehead, 1 June 2022; 1943. Aged 97.

Anthony Eric Wieler, OStJ, 12 April 2022; 1955. Aged 85.

Advertisements

Email: gazette@admin.ox.ac.uk
 Web: <https://gazette.web.ox.ac.uk/classified-advertising-gazette>

Deadline

Advertisements are to be received by **noon on Wednesday** of the week before publication (ie eight days before publication). Advertisements must be submitted online.

Publication

The *Gazette* is only published online, except for library and archive copies. Charges for all adverts have been reduced to reflect this.

Charges

Non-commercial advertisers: £10 per insertion of up to 70 words, or £20 per insertion of 71-150 words.

Commercial advertisers: £20 per insertion of up to 70 words, or £40 per insertion of 71-150 words.

Advertisers may also purchase advertising space for a whole academic year (a minimum of eight insertions per term) at a discount of over 50% on the individual advertisement rate: £9.50 per insertion of up to 70 words, or £19 per insertion of 71-150 words.

See our website for examples of whether an advertisement is considered commercial or private: <https://gazette.web.ox.ac.uk/classified-advertising-gazette>.

Online submission and payment

Advertisements must be submitted and paid for online, using a credit card or debit card, through a secure website. For details, see <https://gazette.web.ox.ac.uk/classified-advertising-gazette>.

Extracts from the terms and conditions of acceptance of advertisements

General

1. Advertisements are accepted for publication at the discretion of the editor of the *Gazette*.

Note. When an advertisement is received via the online shop, an acknowledgement will be emailed automatically to the email address provided by the advertiser. The sending of this acknowledgement does not constitute an acceptance of

the advertisement or an undertaking to publish the advertisement in the *Gazette*.

2. The right of the *Gazette* to edit an advertisement, in particular to abridge when necessary, is reserved.

3. Advertisements must be accompanied by the correct payment, and must be received by the deadline stated above. **No refund can be made for cancellation after the acceptance of advertisements.**

4. Once an advertisement has been submitted for publication, no change to the text can be accepted.

5. Voucher copies or cuttings cannot be supplied.

Charges

6. Two separate charging arrangements will apply, for commercial and private advertisers. The rates applicable at any time will be published regularly in the *Gazette*, and may be obtained upon enquiry. The rates, and guidance on applicability of each rate, are also available online. The editor's decision regarding applicability of these rates to an individual advertiser will be final.

7. Particular arrangements apply to advertisers who declare their intention to advertise for a full academic year ("whole-year advertisers"), and receive a discount on their advertisements for doing so:

a. With effect from January 2022, whole-year advertisers must pay for the year's advertisements upfront via the University's online shop and may opt for 24 insertions (8 per term), 27 insertions (9 per term) or 34 insertions (all issues).

b. Whole-year advertisers whose arrangements were entered into before January 2022 may only withdraw their advertisements partway through the year upon payment of the difference between the discounted rate and the standard rate for each advertisement which has already been published. If such payment is not received by the University of Oxford, the advertiser remains liable for the number of insertions and the discounted rate originally agreed.

Disclaimer

8. The University of Oxford accepts no responsibility for the content of any advertisement published in the *Gazette*. Readers should note that the inclusion of any advertisement in no way implies approval or recommendation of either the terms of any offer contained in it or of the advertiser by the University of Oxford.

Advertisers' Warranty and Indemnity

14. The advertiser warrants:

a. Not to discriminate against any respondents to an advertisement published in the *Gazette* on the basis of their gender, sexual orientation, marital or civil partner status, gender reassignment, race, religion or belief, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, disability, age, or pregnancy.

b. That the advertisement does not contravene any current legislation, rules, regulations or applicable codes of practice.

c. That it is not in any way illegal or defamatory or a breach of copyright or an infringement of any other person's intellectual property or other rights.

You are advised to view our full Terms and Conditions of acceptance of advertisements. Submission of an advertisement implies acceptance of our terms and conditions, which may be found at <https://gazette.web.ox.ac.uk/terms-and-conditions-acceptance-advertisements>, and may also be obtained on application to gazette@admin.ox.ac.uk.

Miscellaneous

Advertisers are asked to note that the remaining *Gazette* of Trinity term will be published on 21 July. Publication for Michaelmas term will begin on 22 September, although that issue will not carry classified advertisements. The first issue to carry classified advertisements will be published on 29 September. The usual deadline will continue to apply (see above).

The Anchor Pub and Grill. Great ribs, steaks, burgers and wings all cooked over charcoal. Barefoot cakes. Awesome cocktails, a big wine list and a huge heated terrace. Open: Weds-Sat noon-9pm; Sun noon-7pm. Contact: 2 Hayfield Rd, Oxford OX2 6TT, 01865 510282 or info@theanchoroxford.com.

St Giles' Parish Rooms for hire. Ideally located close to the city centre at 10 Woodstock Rd OX2 6HT. There is a main hall and a meeting room that can be hired together or separately, and full kitchen facilities. For enquiries regarding availability and to arrange a site visit, contact Meg Peacock, Benefice Manager: 07776 588712 or sgsm.benefice.manager@gmail.com.

Restore - mental illness affects one in four of us in our lifetime, but people can, and do, recover. Restore is a well-established Oxfordshire mental health charity that supports people to take control of their own recovery, develop skills and lead meaningful lives. We offer recovery groups, training and employment coaching to make this possible. Founded in 1977, we are also part of OMHP, a partnership of local mental health organisations (<https://omhp.org.uk>). More information: www.restore.org.uk.

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust wants you to take part in its future. If you have a contract of employment with the University of Oxford in a department within the Medical Sciences Division, or hold an honorary contract award with OUH for at least 12 months, you can join our staff constituency. University of Oxford staff belonging to other departments can join

us as public members. To join us, visit www.ouh.nhs.uk/ft.

Research participants sought

Oxford Vaccine Group seeks study participants for a new vaccine against invasive non-typhoidal salmonella (iNTS), an under-recognised cause of disease and death in sub-Saharan Africa. Eligibility requirements: aged 18-55, in good health and living in the Oxford area. Reimbursement offered of up to £585 for time, inconvenience and travel. Total study participation time: 12 months. More information: <https://trials.ovg.ox.ac.uk/trials/salvo>, info@ovg.ox.ac.uk, or 01865 611400.

Groups and societies

The Oxford University Newcomers' Club is run by volunteers and supported by the University. Our aim is to welcome all partners of graduate students, academics, visiting scholars and staff members, especially those who have recently arrived. As a globally diverse and inclusive group, we offer a warm and friendly environment in which to meet others in Oxford. We also provide information, both general and of special interest, and many opportunities to share experiences as well as to take part in organised events and activities. Please go to our website, www.newcomers.ox.ac.uk, for more information and up to date details of all our activities.

Sell your unwanted books

Sell your unwanted books at competitive prices. If you need extra space or are clearing college rooms, a home or an office, we would be keen to quote for books and CDs. Rare items and collections of 75 or more wanted if in VG condition; academic and non-academic subjects. We can view and collect. Contact Graham Nelson at History Bookshop Ltd on 01451 821660 or sales@historybookshop.com.

Antiques bought and sold

Antiques wanted and for sale - quality antiques such as furniture, fire guards, grates and related items, silver, pictures, china and objets d'art. Please contact

Greenway Antiques of Witney, 90 Corn Street, Witney OX28 6BU on 01993 705026 or 07831 585014 or email jean_greenway@hotmail.com.

Services offered

Secure storage and shredding. Experts on packing, posting/ mailing and shipping. Help to navigate customs regulations, free collection in Oxford and student discounts. HD-quality printing up to A0 - quick turnaround time, and many binding solutions. High Street postal address - never miss another delivery! Contact or visit: Mail Boxes Etc, 266 Banbury Rd, Oxford (tel: 01865 514655; email: info@mbesummertown.co.uk). Also at 94 London Rd, Oxford (tel: 01865 741729; email: info@mbeheadington.co.uk).

Oxford's low-cost packing and shipping experts. Specialised in packing and shipping books, clothing, computers, musical instruments, fragile laboratory equipment, rowing oars, valuable paintings or other household items, we specialise in custom packing and worldwide delivery by road, sea and air. Pack & Send, 3 Botley Rd, Oxford, OX2 0AA. Tel: 01865 260610. Email: oxford@packsend.co.uk.

Accommodation offered

Friendly family offer large double room to suit anyone linked to Oxford University. 18th-century farmhouse, log fires, horses, dogs, beautiful countryside. Near Woodstock; 10 mins to Oxford. Ideal for studying. Contact: shena.guild@btinternet.com.

Self-catering apartments

Visiting Oxford? Studio, 1-, 2- and 3-bed properties conveniently located for various colleges and University departments. Available from 1 week to several months. Apartments are serviced, with linen provided and all bills included. Details, location maps and photos can be found on our website at www.shortletspace.co.uk. Contact us by email on stay@shortletspace.co.uk or call us on 01993 811711.

Notifications of Vacancies

Please refer to the website, or contact the email address shown, for further details of the vacancy. For a full list of vacancies in the University and colleges, see www.jobs.ox.ac.uk/home.

The University is committed to [equality and valuing diversity](#).

University of Oxford

Department of Statistics; Research Facilitator; £33,309-£40,927 (discretionary range to £44,706); 6 September; https://my.corehr.com/pls/uoxrecruit/erq.jobspec_details_form.jobspec?p_id=158875

Colleges, Halls and Societies

Merton; fixed-term stipendiary Lectureship in Spanish; £5,234; 10am, 15 July; www.merton.ox.ac.uk/vacancies

Merton; 1-year stipendiary Lectureship in Philosophy; £7,852; noon, 15 July; www.merton.ox.ac.uk/vacancies

Oriel; Lodge Porter - Nights; 15 July; www.oriel.ox.ac.uk/people/vacancies/lodge-porter-nights

Pembroke; part-time stipendiary College Lecturer in Theory of Politics; £6,981-£7,852; noon, 20 July; www.pmb.ox.ac.uk/work-with-us

Pembroke; part-time stipendiary College Lecturer in International Relations; £6,981-£7,852; noon, 20 July; www.pmb.ox.ac.uk/work-with-us

Pembroke; part-time stipendiary College Lecturers in Engineering and Organising Tutor for Engineering; £4,654-£5,234; noon, 19 July; www.pmb.ox.ac.uk/work-with-us

St Catherine's; stipendiary Lecturership in Economic Geography: noon, 29 July; www.stcatz.ox.ac.uk/category/vacancies

Regent's Park; part-time Finance Assistant (0.4 FTE); £24,000-£26,340 FTE; 5pm, 22 July; www.rpc.ox.ac.uk/about-regents/vacancies

External Vacancies

University of Cambridge; Professorship of Education (2002); 29 August; www.hr.admin.cam.ac.uk/professorships

Published by the University of Oxford; registered as a newspaper at the Post Office; printed by the University Print Studio, University Offices, Wellington Square, Oxford OX1 2JD.

Editor:

D L Doohar, MA Oxf, MSc Oxf Brookes

Deputy Editor:

M R Gaudern, BA MPhil Camb, DPhil Oxf

Gazette copy received will be published in the next available issue. Copy for supplements must be received by **noon on Wednesday** of the week before publication. Inclusion is subject to availability of space.

Certain sections in the *Gazette* include official announcements by the University but the University accepts no responsibility for the content of any other material in the *Gazette*.

Next *Gazette*: Thursday, 21 July

Gazette online: <https://gazette.web.ox.ac.uk/home>

Gazette subscriptions: <https://gazette.web.ox.ac.uk/subscribing-gazette>

Gazette Office

University Offices
Wellington Square
Oxford OX1 2JD

tel: Oxford (2)80549

email: gazette@admin.ox.ac.uk